SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT

This Agreement is entered into by and between the United Stafes Department of Justice and
the City of Memphis oﬁ this in order to resolx}e a charge that
actions taken by the Memphis City Police Department violated the Americans with Disabilities, Act,
42 U.S.C. § 12101 et seq.

The Parties.'

1. The parties to this agreement are the City of Memphis and the United States
Department of Justice.

2. The Cify of Mempbhis is a person within the meaning of 42 USC § 1211 1(7) and 42
USC § 2000e(a); an empio?er Witllill the meaning 6f 42 USC§ 12111(5); aﬁd acovered entify under

42 USC § 12111(2). The City of Memphis is a public entity within the meaning of 42 USC §
12131(1). | | |

3. The United States Department of Justice (“DOJ”) is the federal agency respoﬁsible
for administering and enforcihg Title I (with respect to public employers) of the Americans with
Disabilities Act, 42 USC §§ 12111-12117.

Conténtioné of the Parties

4. This matter was initiated by a complaint filed with the Equal Employment
Opportunity Commission under Title I of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (ADA), 42
U.S.C. §§12111-‘121 17 and accompanying regulations a"f 29 CFR 1630.13. | . BEOC

-Charge , alleges that she was disqualified from being a police officer when a
psychological examinaﬁoh disclosed she had a diagnosis of depression, although her condition was

controlled by medication, and two doctors certified her as being qualified.



5. The Charge was forwarded to the Department of Justice after mveétigation and cause
finding by the EEOC.

6. The State of Tennessee enacted a statufce - Temnessee Code § 38-8-106 — that
excludes all persons who are “not free from apparent mental disorders” from the positions of police
officer. |

7. | The United States alleges, and the City of Memphis admits, that prior to 2001, tﬁe
Memphis Police Department interpreted Tennessee Code § 38-8-106 to mean it must disqualify
candidates for employment as a Police Officer if they have a diagnosis described in the DSM III,
including the charging party. The City of Memphis represents that since 2003, it has followed the
guidance of the State of Tennessee, as described iﬁ paragraph 8.

8. In 2003, pursuant to a Consenf Decree in United States v, State of Tennessee, Civil
Action 1:98-1357, the St_ate of Tennessee agreéd not.to enforce Temueésee Code § 38-8-106, and
other similar statutes affecting other law enforcement jobs in the State (Tennessee Codes 7-86-201,

_4i -1-116, 37-5-117). Henceforth, individuals seeking certain state law enforcement positions, will
not be disqualified from those positions solely on the basis that they have, or once had; a diagnosis
thatisin the DSMIIL. The state of Tennessee has further agreed to implement policies that provide:
(a) incumb;nt employees shall not be subjedt to a medical examination or inquiry unless such
examination or inquiry is shown to be job related and consistent with business necessity. 42 USC
§ 12112(d)(4),29 CFR §1 630.14(0); (b)a job aﬁp].icant or incumbent employee maynotbe
disqualified on the basis of a disability unless, after undertaking anindividualized assessment of the
individual, an employer determines that: (i) the individual cannot perform the essential functions of

the job, with or without accommodation, including, with respect to incumbent employees,



reassignment; and/or (ii) the individual would pose a significant risk to the health or safety of self
or others that cannot be reduced or eliminated by reasonable accommodation. Finally, the state of
Tennessee has agreed to notify local governments that § 38-8-106 and the 0thér similar statutes are
invalid and should not be applied, implemented, or enforced by the counties or municipalities.

9. The United States alleges that § 38-8-106, and the other statutory provisions
referenced in paragraph 8, discriminate against individuals with disabilities, in violation of Title I
of the Ameﬁcans with Disabilities Ac;t (“ADA”), 42 § 12111 - 12117, and its implementing
regulation, 29 CFR Part 1630. Specifically, this statute and related policies discriminate against
individuais on the basis of disability, in violation of 42 USC § 12112(b)(6) and 29 CFR § 1630.10;
by using qualifications standards, employment. tésts or other selection criteria that screen out or tend
to screen out an individual with a disability or a class of individuals with disabiﬁties, when the
standard, test or other selection criteria, as used by the covered elltify, has not been shown to be job
related for the position in question and consistent with business necessity

10.  The City o f M emphis d enies that it has violated the ADA, but admits that the
Tennessee statute at issue contains blanket presumptions which may, if applied, and under certain
circumstances, violate the ADA and applicable regulations‘.

11.  The Attorney General is authorized, by Section 107(a) of Title I, 42 U.S.C. §
12117(a), to institute a civil action against a state or local government embloyef when the EEOC has
determined that there is reasonable cause to believe that charge of employm'eﬁt disérinﬂnzition is
true, and the EEOC has been unable to obtain an acceptable conciliation agreement. Thgse
preconditions exist as to EEOC Charge . In consideration for the offer of relief to

and other actions by the City of Memphis, as set forth herein, the Attorney General and the



Department of Justice will not institute any civil action alleging employment discrimination on the
basis of EEOC Charge against the City of Memphis.

- Actions to be Taken by City of Memphis

.12. | In the interest of resolving this matter without resort to further litigati011, and
believing that 1‘ésolutipn of this matter is in the public interest, the parties hereby agree and stipulate
as follows:

13.  The parties agree that undgr the ADA, the City of .Menllphis may require that a job

applicant undergo a mediczﬂ exlaminati'c‘)n after making an offer of employment conditioned upon the
| résults of the examination, if: (1) all entering employees in that job category are subjected to such
an examination; (2) the inforlﬁation' obtained.regarding the medical condition or history of the
applicant is treated confidentially; and (3) the results of the examination are used in accordance with
the ADA. 42USC § 12112(d)(3),29 CFR § 1630.14(b). A “medical examination” is any procedure
or test that seeks information about an individual’s physical or‘men‘tal impairments or health.
Incumﬁfmf employees shall not be subj ect to a medical ‘examina_tion or inquiry unless such
examinatioh or inquiry is shown to be job related and consistent ﬁfh business necessity. 42 USC
§ 12112(d)(4), 29 CFR § 1630.14(c). A job applicant or incumbent employee may not be
disqualified on the basis of a disability unless, aft¢1' undertaking an individualized assessment of the
individﬁal, an employer determines that: (1) the individualn cannot perform the essential functions
of the job, with or without accommodation, including, with respect to incumbent employees,
reassignment; and/or (2),\the individual would pose a significant risk to the health or safety of self

or others that cannot be reduced or eliminated by reasonable accommodation.

14, The City of Memphis agrees to promulgate new written policies to replace all current



policies that implement Tennessee Statute § 38-8-106 and any of the other statutory provisions
referenced in paragraph 8 that pertain to Memphis job classifications. The new policies will comply
with the ADA, 42 USC § 12101 et seq., which includes the requirements outlined in paragraphs 8
and 13 above. These policies will be submitted to the Department of Justice on or before March 31,
2006.

15.  The City of Memphis agrees not to discriminate against job applicants or employees
on the basis of disability in connection with a psychological evaluatibﬁ.

16.  The City of Memphis will provide training to Human Resources personnel in the
Police Department and all other personnel involved in the selection process for police officers. It
will notify the evaluating professioﬁals in writing of the new standards for psychological evaluations.

1 7 At the next three pqstings for vacancies in the Memphis Police Department, the City
will include a notice that informs individﬁals who were disqualified for the positiop of Police Officer
on the basis of their psychological evaluation for the period 1996 - 2001 of their right to reactivate
the‘ir applications fof employment with the Memphis Police Department. Under this procedure, these
indiAvi duals will not be required to re-take the written qualifying tests known as WRAP or ABLE,
but will be 1'eqi1i1‘ed to pass a physical and psychological examination and an updated background
check for the period sincé they were disqt}aliﬁed. The City of Memphis will not retaliate against any
individual who seeks i‘e—mnployment under thfs Agreement.

Individual Relief.for the Charging Party

18.  The City of Memphis will pay $30,000 (Thirty Thousand Dollars) upon

execution of the release, attached here as Exhibit A.



19.  The City of Memphis will seal any documents in personnel file that
pertain to her psychological tests and the decisions to ask her to resign from the Police Academy.

20.  The City of Memphis will not retaliate against

Enforcement

21.  The United States may review compliance with this Agreement at any time and may
enforce this Agreement if the United States believes that it or any requirement thereof has been
viqlated. If the United States believes that the City of Memphis is not in compliance with this
Agreement <;)1' any portion of it has been violated, it will raise its concerns with the City of Mémphis
and the parties will atteinpt to resolve the concerns in good faith. The United States will .give the
City 30 days from the date it notifies the City of any b1'each of this Agreement to cure that bi‘e&lch
prior to instituting any.c‘ourt action.

22.  Failure by the United States tb enforce any provision or deadline 6f this Agreement
shall not be construed as a waiver of its right to enforce other provisions or deadlines of this

Agreement.

23.  This Agreement. shall be in full force and effect for a period of fhrg‘e (3) years after
the date of execution of this Agreement.

24.  This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement betWGGI‘I the parties regarding the
charges raised in EEOC Cllal'ge and no other statement, promise, or agreement, eithér
written or oral, made by any party or agents of any party, that is not containeci in this written
Agreement, shall be enforceable. |

25.  If any term of this Ag1'ee1llent is determined by any court to beﬁnenforceable, the

other terms of this Agreement shall nonetheless remain in full force and effect.



26.  Theindividuals signing this Agreement represent that they are authorized to bind the

parties to this Agreement.

~ Agreed to:

Dated: R & Weaanetn Lol Cootr — &A—

HN L. WODATCH, Chief
ALLISON NICHOL, Deputy Chief
LAURA F. EINSTEIN, Trial Attorney
Disability Rights Section
U.S. Department of Justice
950 Pennsylvania Avenue, NW - NYA
Washington, D.C. 20530
(202) 514-9583
(202) 616-6862 (facsimile)

- COUNSEL FOR THE UNITED STATES



CITY OF MEMPHIS

Dated:

Dated: s
BARBARALETTE G. DAVIS
Assistant City Attorney
Office of the City Attorney

125 North Main Street, Room 336
Memphis, TN 38103

Telephone: (901) 576-6614
Facsimile: (901) 576-6524

COUNSEL FOR CITY OF MEMPHIS



